Natividad Medical Center Bylaws

Proposed to be Amended May 5, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE OF BYLAWS	I
ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS	1
ARTICLE III. MISSION, AUTHORITY, OBLIGATIONS	2
Section 1. Mission	2
Section 2. Authority	2
Section 3. Obligations & Responsibilities	3
ARTICLE IV. MEMBERS	6
Section 1. Number, Qualifications, Section and Term	6
Section 2. Duties	7
Section 3. Vacancies and Removal of Trustees or Officers.	8
Section 4. Compensation	8
Section 5. Standard of Conduct	9
Section 6. Conflict of Interest	9
ARTICLE V. OFFICERS	9
Section 1 Officers	9
Section 2 Qualifications, Selection and Term	9
Section 3. Duties	9
ARTICLE VI. COMMITTEES	10
Section 1. Appointment and Terms of Members of BOT Committees	10
Section 2. Standing Committees.	10
Section 3. Medical Staff Authority and Responsibility	13
Section 4. Additional Committees and Assignments	13
ARTICLE VII. MEETINGS	13
Section 1. Frequency	13
Section 2. Special Meetings.	14
Section 3. Quorum	14
Section 4 Majority	14
Section 5. Minutes	14
Section 6. Public Meetings	14
ARTICLE VIII. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	14
Section 1. Qualifications and Position	14
Section 2. Annual Performance Evaluation	15
ARTICLE IX. MEDICAL STAFF	15
Section 1. Appointment.	15
Section 2. Termination and Procedural Rights	16
ARTICLE X. INDEMNIFICATION.	16
ARTICLE XI. RIILES AND PROCEDURES	16
ARTICLE XII. ADOPTION	16
ARTICLE XIII. AMENDMENT	16

ARTICLE I – PURPOSE OF BYLAWS

The primary purposes of the Natividad Medical Center ("NMC") Bylaws are to: 1) establish the framework that allows the Board of Trustees ("BOT") to fulfill its role as the NMC governing board to the fullest extent permitted by law and as authorized by the Monterey County Board of Supervisors, 2) clearly define accountability and responsibility for the efficient and effective oversight of day-to-day operations of NMC, 3) comply with the requirements of The Joint Commission ("TJC"), Medicare, and California Code of Regulations Title 22, and 4) allow NMC to function within policies and procedures prevalent in the health care industry and in compliance with applicable Federal, State, and Local statutes and regulations. These Bylaws shall be effective as of May 5, 2017.

ARTICLE II - DEFINITIONS

Within the context of this document, the following definitions apply:

Appeal means the specific procedure(s) set forth in these Bylaws by which an applicant or Medical Staff member has the right to request a review of an adverse recommendation or action on his/her application for Medical Staff membership and/or clinical privileges or a Medical Staff member's membership and/or clinical privileges.

Board of Supervisors means the five duly elected representatives of the County of Monterey.

Board of Trustees or BOT means the appointed and Ex Officio members of the governing body of NMC.

Brown Act means the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code § 54950, et seq.)

Business Plan means the document developed by the Finance Committee to define the directions and business objectives of NMC for the future.

Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") means the individual selected, employed and empowered by the Board of Supervisors to administer day to day NMC operations in consultation with, and by and under the supervision of, the BOT.

Chief Medical Officer means that individual appointed by the CEO who is responsible for working with and assisting the Chief of the Medical Staff and clinical departments, and is concerned with medico-administrative aspects of patient care at the Hospital.

Compliance means operation of NMC within limits established by such legal or regulatory requirements as County ordinances and resolutions, the requirements of TJC, and relevant State and Federal statutes and regulations.

Conflict of Interest means direct or indirect economic interest, gained as the result of BOT action in which a BOT member participated; or any employment, activity, or economic enterprise for compensation that is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to his/her duties as a BOT member.

County means the Legal Entity known as Monterey County in the State of California.

Ex Officio means by virtue of an office held, with vote unless otherwise specified in this document.

Gender means words of masculine gender include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders unless the context shall otherwise indicate.

Hospital or NMC means Natividad Medical Center and includes patient care services provided in the Hospital and/or in other enrolled locations, structures and facilities under the Hospital's license.

Medical Staff means the physicians, dentists, podiatrists, and clinical psychologists appointed by the BOT. The details of the Medical Staff organization are contained in Medical Staff Bylaws.

Medical Staff Bylaws means those documents which organize and govern the Medical Staff of NMC.

Procedural Rights means the procedure(s) referenced or established by these Bylaws and the Medical Staff Bylaws, together with the careful implementation thereof, to accord and protect existing legal rights of Medical Staff members and applicants for Medical Staff membership and/or clinical privileges.

Regular Monthly Meeting means the meeting of the BOT held on a pre-established, duly noticed, monthly schedule as may be amended as necessary from time to time in accordance with the Brown Act and/or other applicable statutes.

Vacancy means an unfilled BOT member seat or an unfilled office. Vacancies may occur because of resignation, death, expiration of term, removal from the BOT or from an officer position, or failure of a member to attend at least fifty percent (50%) of the scheduled BOT meetings in one year.

ARTICLE III - MISSION, AUTHORITY, OBLIGATIONS

<u>Section 1.</u> <u>Mission</u>. The Mission of Natividad Medical Center is to continually improve the health status of the people of Monterey County through access to affordable, high quality healthcare services.

Section 2. Authority

A. <u>Title to Property</u>. The title, direction and control of NMC property is in the County of Monterey and is vested with the Board of Supervisors. Disposition of property by the County of Monterey shall require the approval of the Board of Supervisors, which shall take into consideration the recommendations of the BOT. Purchases or sales of NMC property and investment, transfer or other expenditures of trust funds shall be made only upon the written approval of the Board of Supervisors or their designee(s).

- **B.** <u>Professional and Other Health Care Staff</u>. The Medical Staff and other health care professionals who provide patient care services in or under the auspices of NMC are subject to the authority of the BOT.
- C. <u>Disposition of Surplus Funds</u>. In the event of a surplus of NMC revenue over expenses, use of surplus funds shall be determined by the Board of Supervisors.
- D. <u>Budget</u>. Approval of the Fiscal Year Budget for NMC is vested by law in the Board of Supervisors and shall be based upon consideration of the recommendations of the BOT. The Fiscal Year Budget shall be prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles, and must include all anticipated income and expenses for NMC.
- Section 3. Obligations & Responsibilities. The purpose of these Bylaws is to clearly define the accountability and responsibility for the safety and quality of care, treatment, and services at NMC, and the efficient operation of NMC and compliance with federal and state statutes and regulations and TJC requirements. These Bylaws clarify the respective roles and responsibilities of the BOT and the Board of Supervisors in NMC operations.
 - A. The CEO shall be responsible for overseeing all day to day operational activities of NMC. The business of NMC shall be conducted by the CEO under the direction and supervision of the BOT and with ultimate approval by the Board of Supervisors, as outlined in these Bylaws with due attention to relevant community interests and concerns and designed to ensure a uniform level of patient care.
 - B. The powers and responsibilities of the BOT include, but are not limited to the following:
 - 1. Encourage NMC to fulfill its mission by:
 - a. Creating a clear statement of NMC's mission, vision, values and strategic plan to achieve the mission and vision;
 - b. Monitoring the alignment of NMC management's strategies with the key goals and achieving the vision; and
 - c. Monitoring how the Hospital's programs are meeting the needs of the community within the resources available to do so.
 - 2. Provide for effective executive management by:
 - a. Providing input to the Board of Supervisors in the hiring and if necessary, terminating of the CEO;
 - b. Monitoring the CEO's performance;
 - c. Delegating all management functions to the CEO subject to County and BOT policies and directives; and

- d. Ensuring that leadership succession plans are in place of key management positions.
- 3. Provide for NMC high quality of care by:
 - a. Monitoring the effectiveness of the Medical Staff process for recommending the appointment, reappointment, credentialing and privileging of Medical Staff members;
 - b. Appointing, reappointing, and granting clinical privileges to Medical Staff members, including radiologic and outpatient service Medical Staff members;
 - Adopting internal and external quality standards to be used to assess the care provided;
 - d. Ensuring that patients are admitted to the Hospital on the recommendation of a licensed practitioner permitted to admit patients to the Hospital, in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws and State law;
 - e. Working with the Medical Staff to ensure that a doctor of medicine or osteopathy is on duty at the Hospital at all times, and a doctor of medicine or osteopathy is responsible for the care of each patient;
 - f. Providing that management and Medical Staff have quality and utilization monitoring systems in place and that they are functioning effectively to achieve the desired outcomes;
 - g. Establishing and monitoring an effective performance improvement program;
 - h. Establishing and monitoring an effective ethics and compliance program;
 - i. Approving NMC's written scope of services;
 - Specify the frequency and detail of quality indicator data collected and reviewed by the hospital's Quality Committee, and reviewing the quality indicator data on a regular basis;
 - k. Monitoring the contracted services provided by the hospital to ensure the services are provided in a safe and effective manner and in compliance with quality of care standards;
 - 1. Overseeing the effective operation of the complaint resolution process; and
 - m. Approving NMC's policies and procedures, including the policies and procedures for all service lines of NMC.
- 4. Provide for NMC's financial strength by:

- a. Approving a financial plan, including annual operating and capital budgets, that will meet the strategic plan;
- b. Monitoring and assessing financial performance;
- c. Holding management accountable for providing thorough and accurate financial reports;
- d. Requiring management to implement controls that provide an appropriate system of checks and balances;
- e. Mandating that there is an effective internal audit function; and
- f. Selecting the external auditor and receiving and reviewing the auditor's report.
- 5. Function effectively and efficiently as the BOT by:
 - a. Creating a statement of its roles and responsibilities and using this statement to direct its work;
 - b. Providing that the BOT structure and committee structure reflects and supports its roles and responsibilities to include diligence in attendance and encouragement of candid conversations;
 - c. Recruiting effective BOT members with the knowledge, time and skills needed to govern;
 - d. Providing that systems and procedures are in place to assist the BOT in doing its work, including an annual BOT self-evaluation;
 - e. Providing that the BOT, Medical Staff, and management operate in accord with applicable standards and laws; and
 - f. Respecting the confidentiality of NMC matters.
- **D.** The Board of Supervisors reserves to itself the following power and authority, with consideration of input from the BOT:
 - 1. Borrowing approval(s);
 - 2. Labor relations/collective bargaining;
 - 3. Audit approval;
 - 4. Budget approval;
 - 5. Contract approval;
 - 6. Hiring and termination of the CEO;

- 7. Termination of any Hospital programs or services that require a Beilenson Act hearing; and
 - 8. Any other power and authority the Board of Supervisors determines to be appropriate.

ARTICLE IV - MEMBERS

- Section 1. Number, Qualifications, Section and Term. The BOT shall consist of eleven (11) members:
 - A. Four (4) of whom shall serve in an Ex Officio capacity, with vote, for their terms of office as:
 - 1. County Administrative Officer;
 - 2. Chief of the Medical Staff;
 - 3. One member of the Board of Supervisors, nominated and appointed by the Board of Supervisors; and
 - 4. NMC CEO.
 - **B.** Seven (7) who shall be appointed because of their skills and backgrounds including but not limited to the following:
 - 1. Finance experience at the CFO level;
 - 2. Executive experience in a large and complex organization;
 - 3. Executive experience in the health care or insurance industry;
 - 4. Experience in health care governance;
 - 5. Experience as a community leader;
 - Skills related to the strategic plan of NMC;
 - 7. Membership on the Medical Staff of NMC; and/or
 - 8. Clinical experience as a physician.
 - C. Authority for appointing individuals to the BOT shall be the responsibility of the Board of Supervisors. Individuals to be appointed shall be nominated by the BOT.

The criteria to be considered in nominating individuals as Trustees shall include:

1. Background and skills needed on the BOT;

- 2. Resident of Monterey County;
- 3. Available and willing to attend a minimum of ten (10) monthly BOT meetings and actively participate on at least one BOT committee;
- 4. Willingness to acquire the knowledge and skills required to lead a complex health care organization;
- 5. History of community leadership; and/or
- 6. Commitment to the improvement and development of the health care of the community.

D. Terms of Office.

- 1. Effective as of May 5, 2017 and thereafter, any appointed BOT member who has served on the BOT for ten (10) or more consecutive years of service, shall resign as of the date of the annual meeting in the tenth (10th) year of such service, provided, at the discretion of the BOT, that the final term may be extended so that the BOT member can remain in office until the BOT member's successor has been appointed.
- 2. Effective as of May 5, 2017 and thereafter, the BOT shall limit the length of terms of BOT members appointed to the BOT in order to comply with the requirements of subsection 1 above.
- 3. Subject to the provisions of subsection 2 above, each of the appointed BOT members with the qualifications set forth in subsections 1 through 6 of Section 1 C above shall serve for an initial term of one year, as a trial period for the BOT member and the BOT. Thereafter, with the consent of the BOT member and with the recommendation of the BOT, such appointed BOT member may serve a term of three (3) years, and may serve up to two (2) additional consecutive three (3) year terms if re-appointed by the Board of Supervisors.
- 4. At least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of each term, each Trustee described in subsection 2 B above shall notify the Chairs of the BOT and of the Board of Supervisors if such BOT member is willing to be re-appointed to a subsequent term.
- Each of the Ex Officio BOT members shall serve as a BOT member for so long as he
 or she remains in the designated office, or is the Supervisor selected by Board of
 Supervisors.
- 6. After serving three (3) consecutive three (3) year terms, any BOT member described in subsection 3 above may be re-appointed to the BOT following a one year absence from the BOT.

Section 2. Duties: Duties of individual BOT members include, but are not necessarily

limited to:

- A. Regularly attend BOT meetings, including a minimum of ten (10) meetings per year;
- **B.** Actively participate on and attend meetings of BOT committee(s) to which the member is assigned;
- C. Promptly relate community input to the Board;
- D. Represent NMC in a positive and effective manner in public forums;
- E. Be sufficiently informed about Hospital management and patient care services that the BOT member can effectively evaluate proposed actions and reports;
- F. Accept and fulfill reasonable assignments from the Chair of the BOT; and
- G. Participate in the orientation and educational programs for new BOT members.

Section 3. Vacancies and Removal of Trustees or Officers

A. Trustees

- 1. If a BOT member has not satisfied the above-listed attendance requirements, the BOT shall recommend that the Board of Supervisors declare that a Vacancy on the BOT exists or present to the Board of Supervisors that good reason exists to not declare that a Vacancy exists.
- 2. BOT member Vacancies may also be created by other means, including but not limited to, expiration of term, resignation, death, removal, or moving outside the boundaries of the County.
- 3. In the event of a Vacancy, a replacement shall be nominated by the remainder of the BOT, based on the criteria set forth above in Article IV, Section 1A, B and C, and recommended to the Board of Supervisors for timely appointment.

B. Officers

- 1. Officers may be removed by vote of a majority of those current BOT members for failure to perform the duties of the office, or for malfeasance in office.
- 2. Vacancy in any office shall be filled by nomination and election by the BOT as soon as is reasonably possible
- Section 4. Compensation. The members of the BOT shall receive no compensation, but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official business of NMC as assigned by the BOT, in accordance with established County policies.

Section 5. Standard of Conduct. To the extent not inconsistent with other requirements imposed by state, federal, or local laws, procedures or policies regarding the duties of BOT members in their roles as public officials, each BOT member shall perform his or her duties in good faith, in a manner the member believes to be in the best interest of NMCthe County of Monterey, on behalf of NMC, and including such reasonable inquiry as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances.

Section 6. Conflict of Interest

- A. No BOT member shall participate in any matter which comes before the BOT, or in any matter in which he/she is required to act in his/her capacity as a BOT member, when the BOT member has or may have a direct or indirect economic interest which may be affected as a result of such action. Additionally, no BOT member shall undertake any employment, activity, or economic enterprise for compensation that is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to his/her duties as a BOT member.
- **B.** BOT members shall be required to follow the NMC Conflict of Interest Code adopted by the Board of Supervisors, which shall be attached hereto.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The Officers of the BOT shall be the:

- A. Chair;
- B. Vice Chair; and
- C. Secretary/Treasurer.

Section 2. Qualifications, Selection and Term

- A. Officers are elected by the BOT at its Annual Meeting from among its own members. All members of the BOT are eligible. Election must be by no less than a majority of those Trustees currently appointed.
- **B.** Officers are elected for a one (1) year period and shall serve until a successor has been duly elected. Officers shall be eligible for no more than two (2) consecutive one (1) year terms in the particular office.
- C. A BOT member shall not simultaneously hold more than one office.

Section 3. Duties

- **A.** The Chair shall:
 - 1. Preside at all meetings of the BOT;

- 2. Be an Ex Officio member of all BOT committees;
- 3. Execute, correspondence, and other written instruments as authorized by the BOT; and
- 4. Appoint chairpersons and members of BOT committees.

B. The Vice Chair shall:

- 1. In the absence of the Chair, assume the duties of the Chair; and
- 2. Perform such reasonable duties as may be required by the BOT or by the Chair of the BOT.

C. The Secretary/Treasurer shall:

- 1. Serve as chair of the BOT Finance Committee;
- 2. Be responsible for overseeing the creation and/or maintenance of other financial documentation as may from time to time be required by the BOT's activities; and
- 3. Perform such reasonable duties as may be required by the BOT or by the Chair of the BOT.

ARTICLE VI - COMMITTEES

- Section 1. Appointment and Terms of Members of BOT Committees. The Chair of the BOT shall appoint members of the BOT committees. Appointments are for one (1) year.
 - A. The CEO shall be an Ex Officio member of all BOT committees.

Section 2. Standing Committees

A. Executive Committee

- 1. <u>Composition</u>: The BOT Executive Committee consists of the Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary/Treasurer of the BOT and the CEO.
- 2. <u>Duties</u>: Acts for the full BOT as specifically authorized by the Bylaws or when specifically empowered by a vote of the full BOT constituting a quorum at a regular or special meeting, or when time is of the essence and convening the entire BOT is not possible or practical. All actions of the Executive Committee shall be reported to the BOT at its next regular meeting.
- 3. <u>County Meetings</u>: The BOT Executive Committee, or a subcommittee thereof, is authorized to attend closed sessions of the Board of Supervisors as may be requested by the Board of Supervisors.

B. Finance Committee

- 1. Composition. The BOT Finance Committee consists of the following four (4) BOT members: the Secretary/Treasurer of the BOT, the Chief of the Medical Staff, the CEO, and one (1) additional BOT member appointed by the Chair of the Board of Trustees. The County's Treasurer or Auditor-Controller shall serve as Ex Officio member. The Finance Committee shall be chaired by the Secretary/Treasurer of the BOT. The Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") shall attend all meetings of the Finance Committee and provide professional support.
- 2. <u>Duties</u>: The duties shall include but not be limited to the following:
 - a. Assist in establishing and enhancing valid business and financial management systems;
 - b. Annual review and recommend budget, as well as monthly reviews of financial performance;
 - c. Develop and recommend fiscal policy and standards to the BOT;
 - d. Develop and monitor and evaluate a capital development plan for NMC, and make recommendations to the BOT thereon;
 - e. Develop a combined budget for NMC to present to the BOT for approval;
 - f. Review the operating and capital budgets and monthly financial reports of NMC and make appropriate recommendations to the BOT;
 - g. Ensure the integrity of NMC's financial statements, the financial reporting process, and the systems of internal accounting and financial controls; and
 - h. Prepare the Business Plan for NMC. The Business Plan will provide for capital expenditures for at least a three year period. The Business Plan will identify the objective of, anticipated sources of financing for, and each anticipated capital expenditure in excess of \$600,000 that relates to: the acquisition of land; improvement of land, buildings, and equipment; or replacement, modernization, and expansion of buildings and equipment. The Business Plan will be reviewed and updated annually.

C. Quality Committee

1. <u>Composition:</u> The BOT Quality Committee consists of three BOT members, appointed by the BOT Chair, one of whom shall be the Chief of the Medical Staff. The Chief Medical Officer and the chair of the Medical Staff Patient Safety/Quality Council (the "PSQC") provide professional support for the Committee.

- 2. <u>Duties:</u> The duties of the BOT Quality Committee shall include, but not be limited to:
 - a. Annually approve the annual Quality Improvement Plan for NMC;
 - b. Ensuring that the Quality Improvement Plan reflects the complexity of NMC's organization and services, and involves all departments and services;
 - Make recommendations to the full BOT regarding the development and adoption of Medical Staff and NMC policy, practice, and planning;
 - d. Ensuring that NMC establishes clear expectations for safety;
 - e. Making recommendations to the full BOT regarding the allocation of resources for measuring, assessing, improving, and sustaining NMC's performance and reducing risk to patients;
 - f. Review the Medical Executive Committee ("MEC") recommendations regarding the qualifications, credentials, performance, professional competence, and character of applicants and Medical Staff members, and make recommendations to the full BOT regarding Medical Staff appointments and reappointments, grants of clinical privileges, and corrective action;
 - g. Review reasonable steps taken by the MEC to promote ethical conduct and competent clinical performance on the part of Medical Staff membership including any Medical Staff corrective action and reporting to the full BOT when appropriate; and
 - h. Review reports of the PSQC and MEC, including any identified actual or potential areas of patient risk and recommending appropriate action to the full BOT.
 - 3. Meetings of the BOT Quality Committee:
 - a. The peer review deliberations occur in closed session; and
 - b. Quality discussion and hearings are held in closed session.

D. Community Relations and Planning Committee

- Composition: The BOT Chair shall appoint all members of the BOT Community
 Relations and Planning Committee. The Committee shall consist of the following four
 (4) members of the BOT: one (1) representative from the Medical Staff, the CEO, a
 designee of the CEO, and one (1) additional BOT member appointed by the Chair of
 the Board of Trustees.
- 2. <u>Duties:</u> Responsible, with NMC administration, for developing a multi-year Strategic Plan for NMC that is consistent with Article III Section 1, as well as preparing the

annual Business Plan. The Committee will also review recommendations from the CEO for changes in services provided and make recommendations to the BOT. The Committee shall include in its review community relations and marketing programs.

E. Governance and Nominating Committee

- 1. <u>Composition</u>: The BOT Governance and Nominating Committee shall consist of three BOT members appointed by the Chair of the BOT.
- 2. <u>Duties</u>: The Committee shall develop and implement a process for recruiting and nominating new members for the BOT. Nominations will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors for appointment to the BOT. In addition, the Committee will be responsible for monitoring the BOT's work in accordance with the Bylaws and policies and procedures adopted by the BOT, and overseeing the education and development of BOT members.

Section 3. Medical Staff Authority and Responsibility

It is acknowledged that the Medical Staff of NMC is an entity governed by the Medical Staff Bylaws, rules and regulations, and applicable policies and procedures. The NMC Board delegates to the NMC Medical Staff the responsibility for the oversight of clinical quality.

Section 4. Additional Committees and Assignments

Additional committees, standing or ad hoc, may be established at any time and from time to time by the Board.

ARTICLE VII - MEETINGS

Section 1. Frequency and Place of Meetings

- A. The annual meeting shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the BOT, and shall be held for the purpose of organization, election of Officers, and the transaction of such other business as may appropriately come before the BOT.
- **B.** Regular meetings shall be held with notice on the first Friday of each month at a time and place to be designated by the BOT. Each such meeting shall be duly noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Brown Act.
- C. Standing committees of the BOT meet in accordance with the annual schedule of committee meetings adopted by the BOT, or as frequently as is necessary to fulfill the committee's duties, but not less than quarterly.
- **D.** All meetings of the BOT are held at the principal office of NMC or at such other place within the County of Monterey as the BOT provides by resolution.

Section 2. Special Meetings

- A. Special BOT meetings may be called at any time for a specific, announced purpose by the BOT Chair, or on request of the majority of the then-sitting BOT members.
- **B.** Notice of a special meeting shall be delivered, in writing, to all BOT members at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting and such notice shall be posted and delivered in accordance with Government Code §54956.

Section 3. Quorum

- A. For regular and special meetings of the BOT, a quorum shall be a majority of those Trustees currently appointed. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the BOT members present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the BOT.
- **B.** For committees, a quorum shall be a majority of the members of that committee, and shall include at least one BOT member.

Section 4. Majority

Actions of the BOT shall be by a majority of those Trustees physically and electronically in attendance.

Section 5. Minutes

A record of proceedings of all meetings of the BOT and its standing committees shall be kept on file at the offices of NMC.

Section 6. Public Meetings

All meetings of the BOT and its standing committees shall be open to the public, unless otherwise provided by law, except for closed sessions. Meetings are conducted in accordance with the Brown Act or other applicable statutes.

ARTICLE VIII - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Section 1. Qualifications and Position

A. A qualified and competent CEO shall be retained by the Board of Supervisors, through a search and interview process, with input from the BOT, and shall be given responsibility for the day-to-day management of NMC, subject to BOT and Board of Supervisors oversight. The CEO shall possess the requisite knowledge, skills and experience to sufficiently evaluate, support and monitor the quality of patient care at NMC.

- B. The CEO is an Ex Officio member of all BOT committees.
- C. The California Department of Public Health (Licensing and Certification), the California Department of Health Care Services (Medi-Cal), and the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare) shall be notified in writing whenever the services of a new CEO are retained.

Section 2. Annual Performance Evaluation

- A. The CEO is evaluated at least annually by the BOT. The result of the annual performance evaluation will be presented to the Board of Supervisors for review, modification, and final decision. The BOT and the Board of Supervisors may evaluate the CEO as often as deemed appropriate.
- **B.** The final decision on CEO hiring and termination will be retained by the Board of Supervisors, who will consider the recommendation of the BOT.

ARTICLE IX - MEDICAL STAFF

Section 1. Appointment The BOT shall:

- A. Determine in accordance with State and federal law, which categories of practitioners are eligible to apply for appointment to the Medical Staff.
- B. Appoint members of the Medical Staff and grant the clinical privileges of each practitioner, approve allied health professional ("AHP") status and practice prerogatives, after considering the recommendations of the MEC, at the time of initial application and reappointment in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, AHP Rules and Regulations, and other applicable policies and procedures. The BOT shall ensure that the criteria for selection include evidence of current licensure, relevant training and/or experience, current competence, clinical judgment, interpersonal and communication skills, and physical and mental health status.
- C. Assure that the Medical Staff has bylaws and approve the Medical Staff Bylaws, rules and regulations, and other applicable policies and procedures.
- **D.** Provide for self-government by the Medical Staff with respect to the professional work performed at NMC.
- E. Require that patient care services at NMC or under NMC auspices be provided only by a member of the Medical Staff or under supervision of the Medical Staff, and within the clinical privileges or practice prerogatives granted by the BOT.
- F. Direct that adequate support personnel be available to assist the Medical Staff with organizational functions, including Medical Staff membership and clinical privileges (credentialing), physician performance evaluation (peer review), and collection and

analysis of clinical data (quality assurance, utilization review, and risk management).

G. Assure that a complete and accurate medical record is prepared and maintained for each patient.

Section 2. Termination and Due Process

Membership on the Medical Staff and specific practice privileges are subject to denial, suspension, termination, or curtailment for cause by the BOT. In such an event, due process shall be provided as described in Medical Staff Bylaws.

ARTICLE X - INDEMNIFICATION

Members of the BOT and officers shall be indemnified, defended, and held harmless to the full extent permitted by California law against all claims, liabilities and expenses incurred as a result of an action by the BOT, except in the instance of willful misconduct in the performance of duties as a Trustee or officer, or actions taken as a Trustee or Officer that are beyond the course and scope of his/her duties as a Trustee or officer.

ARTICLE XI - RULES AND PROCEDURES

Agreed upon rules and detailed procedures for implementation of these Bylaws may be contained in a companion document entitled, "Board Policy and Procedures," if adopted by the BOT.

ARTICLE XII - ADOPTION

The Board of Supervisors shall adopt Bylaws with input from the BOT. Such Bylaws shall then be submitted to the BOT for implementation.

ARTICLE XII - AMENDMENT

These Bylaws may be amended by the Board of Supervisors at any time. The BOT may recommend amendments to these Bylaws to the Board of Supervisors. Such amended Bylaws shall then be submitted to the BOT for implementation.

ARTICLE XIV - REVIEW

BOT Bylaws shall be reviewed at least every two years for revision or more frequently if necessary.

Attachment: Board of Supervisors adopted Conflict of Interest Code

Revised: 05.01 4831-6500-2823.1

BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MONTEREY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Approve the amendment to the Conflict of Interest Code of)

the hospital department (Natividad Medical Center) of Monterey County)
<u>ORDER</u>
Pursuant to section 87300 of the Government Code, the Hospital Department (Natividad Medical Center) has requested the Monterey County Board of Supervisors, as code reviewing body, to approve an amendment to its conflict of interest code, which has been adopted and submitted to the code reviewing body.
The amendment to the conflict of interest code of the Hospital Department (Natividad Medical Center), a copy of which has been filed with the Clerk to the Board of Supervisors, is hereby approved by the Monterey County Board of Supervisors.
The Clerk to the Board of Supervisors is hereby directed to notify the Hospital Department (Natividad Medical Center) of the approval of its conflict of interest code by mailing or delivering a copy of this order to the Chief Executive Officer, Natividad Medical Center.
Upon motion of Supervisor Armenta, seconded by Supervisor Lindley, the foregoing order was passed and adopted this 19thday of October, 2004, by the following vote:
AYES: Supervisors Armenta, Calcagno, Lindley, Johnsen
NOES: None
ABSENT: Supervisor Potter
I, SALLY R. REED, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey, State of California, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of an original order of said Board of Supervisors duly made and entered in the minutes thereof of Minute Book 72, on October 19, 2004.
Dated: October 26, 2004
SALLY R. REED, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, County of Monterey, State of California
By And D. Industry

CONNICE I Wast Wast

MONTEREY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

MEETING: October 19, 2004

AGENDA NO.:

5-5

SUBJECT

Approve the amendment to the Conflict of Interest Code of the Hospital Department (Natividad Medical Center) of Monterey County

DEPARTMENT: NATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors, as code reviewing body, approve and order the proposed amendment to the Conflict of Interest Code of the Hospital Department (Natividad Medical Center), a copy of which is attached hereto.

SUMMARY

Natividad Medical Center has amended its conflict of interest code to revise the list of designated positions and to delete positions that were deleted from the County approved list of classifications.

DISCUSSION

Amendments to local agency conflict of interest code are authorized by section 87306 of the Government Code whenever changes are required by changed circumstances, by creation or deletion of designated positions, or by changes in the duties of such positions. The proposed code as amended is lawful under the Political Reform Act of 1974.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT

This amendment has been approved by County Counsel.

FINANCING

There is no fiscal impact upon the County of Monterey as a result of the proposed amendments to the department's conflict of interest code.

Lionel "Chad" Chadwick Chief Executive Officer

Data

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE OF THE HOSPITAL DEPARTMENT (NATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER) OF MONTEREY COUNTY

- A. The Political Reform Act of 1974, the Government Code sections 81000, et seq., requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes. The fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 which contains the terms of a standard model Conflict of Interest Code which can be incorporated by reference and which may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act after public notice and hearings. Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 and any amendments to date duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission along with the attached Appendix in which officials and employees are designated and disclosure categories are set forth are hereby incorporated by reference and constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the Hospital Department (Natividad medical Center) of Monterey County.
- B. Pursuant to 2 California Code of Regulations section 18730 (b) (4), all designated employees shall file statements of economic interest with their agency. Upon receipt of this statement of the chief executive officer of the hospital, the agency shall make and retain a copy and forward the original of this statement to the code reviewing body. Statements for all other designated employees will be retained by the agency.

C. APPENDIX

EXHIBIT "A": Designated Positions

EXHIBIT "B": Disclosure Categories

General Provisions

When a member, Officer, or employee who holds a designated position is required to disclose investments and sources of income, he or she shall disclose investments in business entities and sources of income which do business in the jurisdiction, plan to do business in the jurisdiction, are had done business in the jurisdiction within the past two years. In addition to other activities, a business entity is doing business within the jurisdiction of its own real property with the jurisdiction.

When a designated member, Officer, or employee who holds a designated position is required to disclose sources of income, he or she shall disclose gifts received from donors located inside as well as outside the jurisdiction.

When a designated member officer or employee who holds a designated position is required to disclose interest in real property, he or she shall disclose gifts received from donors located inside as well as outside the jurisdiction.

When a designated member, Officer or employee who holds a designated position is required to disclose interest in real property, he or she shall disclose the type of real property described below, if it is located in the whole are in part within, are not more than two miles outside of the boundaries of the jurisdiction are within two miles of any land owned are used by the County of Monterey.

For purposes of the Conflict of Interest Code, the jurisdiction of the Hospital Department (Natividad Medical Center) is the County of Monterey.

Disclosure Category 1:

It's a member, Officer, or employee holding a position assigned to Disclosure Category 1 shall, in the manner described above, report:

- All investments in business entities and sources of income in the jurisdiction.
- Investments in real property, in the jurisdiction, which were acquired by, least, or otherwise used by the Hospital Department (Natividad medical Center).
- His are her status as director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holder of a management position in any business entity in the jurisdiction.

- (A) Makes a governmental decision whether to:
- 1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation;
- 2. Adopt or enforce a law.
- 3. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, certificate approval, order or similar authorization or entitlement;
- 4. Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it is the type of contract which requires agency approval;
- 5. Grant agency approval to a contract which requires agency approval and in which the agency is a party or to the specifications for such a contract;
- 6. Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, steady, or similar item;
- 7. Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, standards, or guidelines for the agency, or for any subdivision thereof or
- (B) Services in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the agency that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in the agency's conflict of interest code.

Consultants to the Hospital Department (Natividad Medical Center) shall be subject to disclosure under

¹ For the purposes of this code, "Consultant" has the same meaning as set forth in 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18700 (a) (1), as follows:

[&]quot;Consultant" means an individual, pursuant to a contract with a state are local government agency:

category I, subject to the following limitation:

The hospital department may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a "Designated Employee," is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements of category 1. In such cases the hospital department may designate a different disclosure required. Such designation must be made in writing and shall include a description of the consultant's duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of the consultants disclosure requirements. The hospital department's designation must be filed, in advance of disclosure by the consultant, with the agency's conflict of interest code and also filed with the code reviewing body and must be delivered to the consultant along with a copy of the conflict of interest code and the manual and forms for disclosure (FPPC Form 700.)

Revised: 03-19-86

05-04-90 06-23-92 10-23-96 04-03-01 09-21-04

2004 Local Biennial Notice

Name of Agency: MATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER Mailing Address: 1441 CONSTITUTION BRUD., SALINAS, CA. 93906 Contact Person: 4000 "CARD" CHANUCK (20) Office Phone No: (831) 755-4166
Mailing Address: 1441 CONSTITUTION BRUD. SALINAS, CA. 93908
Contact Person: LONA "CHAMUCK LOD Office Phone No: (831) 755-4186
E-mail: Fax No: (831) 755-7163
This agency has reviewed its conflict-of-interest code and has determined that: An amendment is required. The following amendments are necessary: (Check all that apply)
O Include new positions (including consultants) that must be designated
O Delete positions that manage public investments from the list of designated positions
O Revise disclosure categories
O Revise the titles of existing positions
Delete titles of positions that have been abolished
O Other (describe)
263 263
No amendment is required. The agency's code accurately designates all positions that make or participate in the making of governmental decisions; the disclosure categories assigned to those positions accurately require the disclosure of all investments, business positions, interests in real property, and sources of income which may foreseeably be affected materially by the decisions made by those holding the designated positions; and the code includes all other provisions required by Government Code Section 87302. Signature of Chief Executive Officer Date

Complete this notice regardless of how recently your code was approved or amended. Please return this notice no later than October 1, 2004 to:

Cynthia Juarez, Deputy Clerk Clerk to the Board Office Salinas Courthouse E.W. Room 226 P.O. Box 1728 Salinas, CA 93902